

# TRACY RAIDERS

Youth Football and Cheer



*Raider Pride - What does it mean? Believe in yourself, believe in your teammates, Always work hard, Never give up*

# Bylaws

(7-12-06)

## **Article I**

### **Name of Organization**

- I. This organization shall be known as “ Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer “, a nonprofit organization dedicated to serving the youth of Tracy and the surrounding local area.
- II. The name “Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer” shall be the sole property of this organization and shall not be used without the prior approval of the Board.
- III. The colors of the organization will be Black and Silver.

## **Article II**

### **Organization Objectives**

- I. The objective of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer is to provide a football and cheerleading program at a minimum cost to the participants and their families. While implementing the ideals of Good Sportsmanship, Honesty, Courage, Loyalty, and Respect for one's self and others.
- II. Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer will do all it can to restrict travel distance for games to a minimum.
- III. Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer will provide, to the best of its ability, a safe and well-organized program with experienced coaches.
- IV. To achieve this objective, Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer will provide a supervised program under the Rules and Regulations as set forth in these By-laws and the current edition of the rulebook (herein referred to as "Rulebook") of the Delta Youth Football League. In accordance with Section 501-(c) (3) of the Federal Internal Revenue Code, Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer shall operate exclusively as a non-profit educational organization providing a supervised program of competitive Football and Cheerleading. No part of the earnings shall inure to the benefit of any private shareholder or individual; no substantial part of the activities of which is carrying on propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and which does not participate in or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.
- V. Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer herein establishes it organizational ties to the organization "Youth Sports Alliance of Tracy" better known as "YSAT" and is committed to appoint at least one member of it's Board of Directors to sit on the Board of Directors for YSAT. Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer commits to pay a yearly due to YSAT help support the efforts of said organization.

## **Article III**

### **Governing Membership**

- I. The governing membership of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer will consist of an Executive Board, Board of Directors, Head Football and Cheerleading Coaches.
- II. **The Executive Board** will consist of a President, 1<sup>st</sup> Vice President, 2<sup>nd</sup> Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. Nominations for all Executive Board positions must be completed at the regularly scheduled March meeting. Elections will be held at the regularly scheduled April meeting with new elected officers taking office at the conclusion of this meeting. Election to office will require a majority vote of the governing membership of the previous season. The Executive Board members will hold office for a period of two years. Election of the President, 2<sup>nd</sup> Vice President, & Treasurer will be held on all even years. Election of the 1<sup>st</sup> Vice President and the Secretary will be held on all odd years.

III. **The Board of Directors** will include the Cheerleading Governing Head Coach, Football Governing Head Coach, Head Equipment Manager, Head Weighmaster, up to 15 At large Board of Directors. All Directors must submit an application for their intended position no later than the 2<sup>nd</sup> Tuesday of March. An interview of each Director will be conducted followed by a vote by the current Board of Directors will be completed on the 2<sup>nd</sup> Tuesday of April. The newly elected Directors will take office on May 1<sup>st</sup>. Appointment to office will require a majority vote of the Executive Board, Current Board of Directors. Each Director will hold office for a period of one election year.

IV. **Head Football and Cheerleading Coaches** - One Head Coach will be appointed for each team or squad offered by the Tracy Raiders. Appointment of Head Coaches must be completed prior to the regularly scheduled April meeting each year. A majority vote of the Executive Board will be required for appointment. All Head Coaches will be required to submit their letter of intent by February 1<sup>st</sup> of each year if they plan to return. Head Coaches will serve for a term of one full election year and will be required to go through a review at the end of every season, which may or may not result in a recommendation to coach for another year after such review.

## **Article IV Voting**

I. A quorum will be required for all votes taken during elections, bylaw changes and expenditure approvals.

II. A quorum will be defined as (50%+1) Fifty percent plus one of the elected Governing Membership (Executive Board, Board of Directors, Head Coaches).

III. All Executive Board Members, Board of Directors, Head Coaches will be given the right to one vote in all Tracy Raiders Youth Football elections, policy making and everyday business, with the exception of the President who will only have a vote in cases of a tie.

IV. In the event that an Executive Board Member, Director, Head Coach, may be absent during a vote. He/she may request to vote by proxy. The request must be in writing, signed by the Governing Member and received by an Executive Board Member prior to the start of the meeting to which the vote will be taken.

V. No Governing Member will have more than one vote for any vote taken, even if that member holds more than one voting position.

## **Article V Active Members**

I. **Participant Member:** A Participant member is defined as a current football player or cheerleader participating in the program.

II. **Board Member Eligibility:** An individual who has been a Participant member in the past, or the parent or sibling of a current Participant member, or an individual who is sincerely interested in active participation to effect the objectives of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer. All members **MUST** be in good standing with Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer in order to participate.

III. **Executive Board Eligibility:** An individual who has been on the Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer board for at least one year will be considered eligible to be nominated for an Executive Board position. Note: If no board member is available to occupy an Executive Board position, a Participant member may be considered for the position if that person is a Member in Good standing.

IV. **Member in Good Standing:** A member in Good Standing is defined as, a member who has met all required obligations to "Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer" during the season, including financial obligations, proper and legal paperwork/documentation, family volunteer hour requirements, return of all equipment in acceptable shape from prior seasons, and any other such obligations deemed necessary by the Board of Directors to successfully support the Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer organization in a fair and equal manner.

A. All Participant Members and their families must be in Good Standing with Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer in order to participate in the Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer program.

V. If any Governing Member is absent from three consecutive board meetings, that member will be considered a NON-ACTIVE member. The Governing Board will have 30 days to review the situation and determine whether or not this Board member will be reinstated or removed from the Board. This will apply to all Governing Board Members. An excused absence would be work, illness, Childs activity, or school event. Member must still notify President if he/she cannot attend a meeting.

VI. No member of the Executive Board, Board of Directors or Head Coaching Staff will be allowed to remain in office if they are not an ACTIVE member of the organization unless excused by a majority (50%+1) vote of the current voting members.

VII. In the event that a Governing Member is unable to meet the required board meetings to maintain their active status, do to unforeseen circumstances, the member may request a leave of absence. The request must be in writing and approved by a majority vote of the governing board. All members on leave of absence will be considered inactive and will have no voting rights until their leave has ended.

VIII. All Board members, coaches, and Staff members will be subject to interviews by the Board of Directors and to a background check; to be conducted by a Tracy Raider Board approved agency only. All Board members, Coaches, and Staff members must understand that by applying for a position in this organization may require them to submit to random drug testing at any time.

## **Article VI Duties of Office**

I. **President:** As Chief Executive Officer of Tracy Raiders Youth Football and Cheer, he/she will preside over all Executive Board meetings.

A Upon Board approval, for any committee or committees. The President will have full power to appoint a Chairperson to the committee or committees as required.

B In the event of any head coach resigning or being dismissed by the Board, the President may make a temporary appointment(s) to the vacant position(s) with Executive Board approval. If a Board member resigns or is dismissed by the Board, the President may make a temporary appointment (s) to the vacant position(s) with Board approval. The appointment will be for the remainder of the current season.

- C Upon Board approval the president may appoint all non-elected positions as he or she deems necessary for the benefit of the organization and its goals to be reviewed annually. All such appointments shall expire at the end of the season.
- D It will be the responsibility of the President to set the date, time and location of all Board meetings. Notification of Board meetings may be delegated in any way the President deems best to assure that the largest number of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer members are reached.

II. **1<sup>st</sup> Vice President:** During the absence of the President, the 1<sup>st</sup> Vice President shall assume all the duties of the President with all the powers and restrictions placed on the office.

- A The 1<sup>st</sup> Vice President shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board.

III. **2<sup>nd</sup> Vice President:** During the absence of the President and the 1<sup>st</sup> Vice President, the 2<sup>nd</sup> Vice President shall assume all the duties of the President with all powers and restrictions placed on the office.

- A The 2<sup>nd</sup> Vice President shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board.

IV. **Secretary:** Shall keep, or cause to be kept, a book of minutes of all Board meetings. The minutes to show the time and place of the meeting, whether regular or special, names of Governing Members present and the proceedings that follow. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to:

- A Keep a copy of the BYLAWS as amended to date.
- B Notify all Governing Board Members of the Date, Time and Location of all scheduled Board meetings.
- C Be responsible for all written correspondence to all Governing Members.
- D Perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board.
- E Keep a log of all motions passed or declined for the current year.

V. **Treasurer:** The chief financial officer of the organization. The Treasurer shall keep and maintain adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business transactions of the organization. It shall be the duty of the Treasurer to:

- A Deposit all moneys and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the organization, with such depositories as may be designated by the Board. The Treasurer shall disburse the funds of the organization as may be ordered by the Board
- B Render in writing an account of all transactions and of the financial condition of the organization at all scheduled Board meetings. Report to consist but not limited to 1) expenditures, 2) deposits, 3) account balances, 4) pending expenses and 5) YTD balance report to be in writing.
- C Prepare an annual budget and financial statement under the direction of the President for submission to the Board of Directors at final annual meeting in December.
- D Have all Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer's books, accounts and records in condition for audit at all times and ready to turn over to his/her successor in the office of the Treasurer.
- E Insure that all accounts are properly designated and that there shall be no commingling of personal or non-league assets of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer.
- F Perform such duties as are herein specifically set forth and such other duties as are customarily incident to the Office of the Treasurer or may be assigned by the Board of Directors or President.

VI. **Governing Head Coach of Football:** Supervise the day to day activities of the youth football program and be responsible for the activities of all football coaches, to assure a safe and quality football program. It shall be the duty of the Governing H/C of Football to:

- A Be responsible for keeping the football coaches informed of any League or Board activities that may relate to them or their teams.

- B Be the authority to which coaches, players and parents may make known any requests or complaints. He/she will determine if the requests or complaints are valid and should be taken to the Board for possible action.

**VII. Governing Head Coach of Cheerleading:** Direct the day to day activities of the youth cheerleading program and be responsible for the activities of all cheerleading coaches, to assure a safe and quality cheerleading program. It shall be the duty of the Governing H/C of Cheerleading:

- A Be responsible for keeping the cheerleading coaches informed of any League or Board activities that may relate to them or their teams.
- B Be the authority to which coaches, players and parents may make known any requests or complaints. He/she will determine if the requests or complaints are valid and should be taken to the Board for possible action.

**VIII. Head Equipment Manager:** Responsible for the issuing or causing to have issued all football equipment. It shall be the duty of the Head Equipment Manager to:

- A See that each football team has an equipment manager and all the necessary parts and tools for equipment repair.
- B Notify the Board of all needed replacement equipment, parts and tools for purchase approval.
- C Head Equipment Manager will also be responsible to provide a report at the end of the season, accounting for all Tracy Raider equipment. This report should include what equipment was available at the beginning of the season, what was purchased during the season, and what was turned in at the end of the season. It should also provide all missing equipment and the name of the child that it was assigned to. This report will be due at the January Board meeting.

**IX. Head Weigh master:** Responsible for making sure that each team is prepared for official weigh-ins. It shall be the duty of the Head Weigh master to:

- A See that each football team has a weigh master, and to make sure that these weigh masters are present during their designated teams weigh-ins.
- B Make sure that there is a scale available at every practice and all home games that is accurate and has been calibrate.

**X. Snack Bar Coordinator:** Responsible for the organization of a snack bar staff for each home game or event and procurement of all necessary goods required for the snack bar.

**XI. Asst. Snack Bar Coordinator:** Responsible for supporting the Snack Bar Coordinator in organizing and running the snack bar during home games or other events.

**XII. Event Coordinator:** Responsible for the coordination of all special events as approved by the Governing Board.

- A Special events include but are not limited to Annual Crabfeed, Annual Carnival, Awards Banquet, Photo Day, Homecoming, etc.

**XIII. Asst. Events Coordinator:** Responsible for supporting all the efforts of the Events Coordinator, including planning.

**XIV. Video Production Coordinator:** Responsibility it to coordinate people to Videotape for all games at all levels, including Cheerleader performances, and Pre & Post season play.

**XV. At Large Board Members:** Responsibilities and Duties will be defined as needed by the Board.

## **Article VII Exclusions**

- I. The President, 1<sup>st</sup> Vice President, Governing Head Coach of Football and Governing Head Coach of Cheerleading may not hold a Head Coaching position, except in cases where another qualified person can not be found to fill the position and then only as a last resort.
- II. Conflict of Interest: No Board Member may preside on any reviews, disciplinary action or interview where a conflict of interest might arise. Conflict will be determined with a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

## **Article VIII Board Actions**

- I. **Dismissal:** The affected party shall be given a written notice within 72 hours with reasons for dismissal. The affected party shall have 14 days to present their case to the entire Board of Directors. A Governing Member may be removed, with cause, by a two-thirds vote of the Board at anytime. Any such removal shall be without prejudice.
- II. **Resignation:** Any Governing Member may resign at anytime by giving written notice to the Executive Board. Resignation shall take effect on the date of the receipt of notice or any later time specified by the resigning party. The acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- III. **Vacancies:** A vacancy in any office shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these bylaws under Article VI (duties of the President) and Article III (Governing Membership).

## **Article IX Board Meetings**

- I. **Board meetings**, regular or special, shall be held at any place within the area of the Governing League and as designated by the President of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer. A minimum rental fee may be allowed for use of a meeting place, if a location cannot be found at no cost to the organization. No other expenses will be allowed. It is to be the goal of this organization to limit business costs wherever possible, so as to allow maximum expenditures to go to the youth programs.
- II. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on the 2<sup>nd</sup> Tuesday of each month for the purpose of organization, elections, and the transactions of other business. Notice of all meetings shall be made to all members of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer prior to the scheduled meeting. All Board meetings shall be open to the public for the first 30 minutes or until the agenda is complete. At that time the meeting will be closed and the Staff meeting shall begin. All meeting will end by 9:00 p.m. or 1½ hours. All members must stay until 9:00 p.m. or the 1½ hours. Each speaker shall be limited to 3 minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per topic. If a item requires greater time it will be tabled to the end of the meeting, time permitting, or tabled for the next meeting. The Board may decide to extend the topic time. Meetings will begin at 7:00 p.m. during the off-season and 7:30 p.m. during the regular season. All meetings are to be called to order at the respective time. (revised November 2003)

- III. **Action without meeting:** Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board to conduct day to day business may be taken without the need of a full Board meeting, if all members of the Board are contacted by phone or email and a majority consent to such action is obtained. Such consent shall be filed with the minutes of the proceeding of the Board.
- IV. The President may approve expenditures of up to \$100.00 per purchase without Board approval, if deemed necessary to conduct business. A report of all purchases must be given at the following Board meeting.

## **Article X Rights of Inspection**

- I. All ADULT members of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer shall have the right to inspect all financial records, and Bylaws of the organization.

## **Article XI Indemnification**

- I. Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer shall indemnify each of its officers, directors, coaches and their families against all reasonable expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them. Do to any judgments, attorney's fees and court costs in connection with the defense of any litigation or administrative proceeding to which they have been made a party, because they are or were an officer, director, or coach of this organization.
- II. Any present or past officer, director, founder or coach will have no rights to any reimbursement if they have been negligent, shown misconduct or reckless disregard in the performance of their duties.

## **Article XII Coaches**

Head Coaches will be appointed by a majority vote of the Executive Board, as provided for in Article III.

- I. **Eligibility:** Individuals interested in becoming a coach must meet all Delta Youth Football League and Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer requirements and possess the highest moral character. No person with a criminal record, that may be deemed a hazard to the youth of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer, will be eligible for a coaching position.
- II. **Requirements:** Applicants for any open position for Head Coach submit a Letter of Intent and an Application to the Executive Board. Applicants for Head Coach may indicate their preference as to which level they would like to coach. Three (3) years of coaching experience is preferred. Any new applicants must submit a list of qualifications and a list of references with their Letter of Intent and Application. All assistance coaches will also be required to fill out an Application every year.

- III. **Responsibilities:** It will be the responsibility of the Head Coaches to assure a SAFE and QUALITY program for their teams or squads. Each Head Coach will select his or her coaching staff, keeping in mind the goals of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer. No coach shall be allowed to presume his/her duties until the Board has approved them. Any coach that fails to meet all League and Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer regulations will be dismissed.
- IV. It will be the responsibility of the Head Coaches to see that every effort is made to assure that ALL kids are given a chance to participate in every game or event sponsored by the League or Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer. It is also the responsibility of the Head Coach to make sure that every kid participates in every practice, provided that the kid is not sick or injured.
- V. Head Coaches will be responsible to assure that at least one coach from each team will be present at all Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer functions. The coaches will be responsible for implementing any required disciplinary measures needed to control his or her team members.
- VI. **Safety Concerns:** If a Head Coach determines that a child on their team is considered a safety risk. The Head Coach must address this issue with the Governing Head Coach and the President as soon as it is determined. The President, Governing Head Coach, and the Head Coach will monitor practices for the next several days to confirm the Head Coach's observations. After the observation period, a meeting must be arranged with the child's parents, and an explanation will be presented to the parents in writing at that meeting.
- VII. **Disciplinary Action for Coaches:** If a coach is found to be in violation of any of the rules or regulations of these Bylaws or the Bylaws of the Delta Youth Football League, that coach will be suspended and have their badge taken away. The Board of Directors will meet to review the violation and determine what the next course of action will be, which may result in anything from the coach being put on probation to the coach be dismissed for the rest of the season. This will depend upon if it was a Tracy Raiders Bylaw violation or a Delta Youth Football League violation.
- VIII. **Reviews:** All Head coaches will be required to go through a formal review at the end of every season. The Executive Board and Two additional Directors at large elected by the Board shall perform the reviews. Reviews may or may not result in the Coaches recommendation for the next season or the coach's termination. Results are then presented to the Governing Members for a majority vote. Thereafter the recommendation or termination shall be performed.

## **Article XIII**

### **Equipment**

- I. All equipment issued to a team or squad member will remain the property of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer and must be returned intact, to each team's Head Coach no later than one week after the teams last game or is removed, resigns or leaves a team or squad. The Head Coach may extend the allowed time to turn in equipment if deemed necessary. The Governing Board shall provide for storage of all equipment.

- II. Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer will provide all football teams with all minimum required safety equipment, Game & practice pants, game jersey and carry bag. Socks, shoes and athletic supporters are to be furnished by the team member and will remain the property of that team member. It is strongly suggested that all male football players wear an athletic supporter with cup during all practices and games.
  
- III. Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer will approve a cheerleading uniform and accessories which will be purchased by the participant and remain the property of the participant. Socks, shoes, and undergarments will be furnished by the squad member and will remain the property of that squad member. Any other accessories, such as pom poms, gloves, etc. may be purchased by the team membership and will remain the property of each member making said purchase. Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer may elect, by Board approval, to purchase some accessories if funds allow. Any accessories purchased by Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer will remain the property of the organization and must be returned.

#### **Article XIV Amendments**

- I. Any Governing Member may submit amendments to these bylaws at the April and October regularly scheduled Board meetings. Voting on proposed amendments will take place at the regularly scheduled May and November meetings. A two-thirds vote by the Governing Members will be required to make any amendment changes or additions.

#### **Article XV Grievance Procedures**

- I. Any grievance, in order to be considered, shall be submitted in writing, signed by the aggrieved and presented to the President, or Governing Head Coach of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer. The grievance shall be considered within seven (7) days. If the grievance is not resolved within the seven day timeframe, the matter will be brought to Governing Members at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting. The aggrieved party shall receive a written reply as to the time and place of the meeting and may be requested to appear. If a request to appear is made, it will be considered mandatory for the grievance to be considered. A written report of the Board's decision must be given to the aggrieved no later than seven (7) days after the meeting.

#### **Article XVI Governing League Bylaws**

- I. Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer will abide, in full, to all Governing League Bylaws, Rules and Regulations. Any Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer Bylaws, Rules or Regulations that may conflict with that of the Governing League will be considered invalid during the time that the organization is a part of said League or said League Bylaws, Rules or Regulations are changed and no longer conflict.
  
- II. Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer will use its' Bylaws, Rules or Regulations and those of the Governing League as a minimum guide. The organization may choose to add to or change

said Bylaws, Rules or Regulations as deemed necessary in accordance with Article XIV - Amendments. Any addition or change must in no way cause a conflict with in the League and must only effect the activities of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer.

## **Article XVII**

### **Tryouts and Cuts**

- I. Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer will provide a Training Camp/Tryout every year as required to pick and prepare their Football and Cheerleading squads. Each level will conduct these tryouts in accordance with the instructions set forth in these bylaws. Deviating from these instructions will require that the coach in violation be suspended and their badge being pulled, pending a review by the Governing Board and may result in that coach being removed from coaching altogether.
- II. Delta Youth Football League Bylaws require that if a team has more than 45 kids signup to play football, that a tryout be held and the team cut down to 45 players (Football only). Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer require that there only be one (1) cut, and that it will take place on the 10<sup>th</sup> day of tryouts only. A child will NOT be allowed to be cut prior to this 10<sup>th</sup> day.
- III. If a Football team has less than 60 players registered, they may take sign-ups up to the conclusion of the fifth practice (Usually the Thursday of the first week). After that day, there will be no signups taken, unless in the case of football the team has less than 45 players. In the case of cheerleaders, there will be no signups taken after the conclusion of the first day of practice, unless the team has less than 20 cheerleaders.

## **Article XVIII**

### **Finances and Accounting**

- I. The Governing Board shall decide all matters pertaining to the finances of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer and shall place all income in a common league treasury, directing the expenditure of same in such manner as will give no individual or team an advantage over those in competition with such individual or team.
- II. The Governing board shall not permit the contribution of funds or property to individual teams but shall solicit same for the common treasury of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer, thereby to discourage favoritism among teams and to endeavor to equalize the benefits of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer.
- III. The Governing Board shall not permit the solicitation of funds in the name of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer unless all of the funds so raised are placed in the Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer treasury.
- IV. The Governing Board shall not permit the disbursement of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer funds for other than the conduct of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer activities in accordance with the rules and policies as set forth herein.
- V. No Director, Officer or Member of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer shall receive, directly or indirectly, any salary, compensation or emolument from Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer for services rendered as Director, Officer, or Member.

- VI. All moneys received shall be deposited to the credit of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer in a local bank and all disbursements shall be made by check. All disbursements must be approved and co-signed by two of the following three authorized signers: President, 1<sup>st</sup> Vice President, and Treasurer. Any disbursement endorsed to one of the four authorized signers must be approved and co-signed by two of the other two authorized signers.
- VII. At the beginning of each season, the Treasurer will submit a budget to the Board for the season's expenditures. This budget must be submitted by the March meeting. Any additional expenditure during the season will be at the approval of the Board of Directors.
- VIII. The Governing Board shall approve all unbudgeted expenditures in excess of \$100.00.
- IX. Upon dissolution of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer and after all outstanding debts and claims have been satisfied, the Members shall distribute the property of Tracy Raiders Youth Football & Cheer to such other Federally Incorporated entity maintaining an objective similar to that set forth herein.